NORTH BAY POLICE N
NORTH' BAY

nnnnnnn

SERVICES BOARD

135 Princess Street W., PO. Box 717, North Bay, ON P18 8)8 st Nooth Ereught o e PERFECT

OPEN SESSION AGENDA
Oct 12, 2016 @ 10:00 hours

Presentation — MPP Fedelli

1. Approval of Agenda Chair
2. Approval of Minutes of Open Session meeting of Sept 14, 2016 Chair
3. Business Arising: Chair
4. Correspondence Chief
5. Contingency Chief
6. Taxi Business:

Taxi Licences Chief
7. Reports:

Chief’'s Monthly Activity Chief

Chief's Expenses Chief

Statistical Report August 2016 Chief
8. New Business:

Annual Report 2015 Chief

9. Association Report NBPA Designate



MINUTES OF OPEN MEETING
North Bay Police Services Board
September 14, 2016

Present:

Board Members: Dennis O'Connor, Chair, William Hagborg, Vice-Chair,
Sheldon Forgette, Allan McDonald, Tiziana Silveri,

Police Service: Chief Shawn Devine, Deputy-Chief Scott Tod

Board Solicitor: Peter Leckie

Association:

Communications Coordinator: Mary Lugli

Guests: The Media

Secretary: Carol Miller

Regrets:

Call to Order
The Chair, Dennis O'Connor, called the meeting to order at 1000 hours.

Approval of Agenda:

Resolution: #112-2016

Moved by: William Hagborg, Seconded by: Tiziana Silveri

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“Accept the amended agenda for the Open Session Meeting to be held on
September 14, 2016".

Carried
Note: A presentation will take place later in the meeting to Sgt. M. Hunter

Approval of Minutes:
Resolution: #113-2016
Moved by: Sheldon Forgette, Seconded by: Allan McDonald
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“Adopt the Minutes of the Open Meeting held on June 9, 2016”.
Carried

Business Arising
There were no items brought forward.

Correspondence

Correspondence this month included letters, cards and e-mails from: a citizen, in
appreciation for services provided by police officers, in appreciation for donation
to the Ride For Dad Motorcycle Run; in appreciation from Michael Bechard,
Deputy Fire Chief, to Cst. Steve Carleton in appreciation for participation in the

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 1



North Bay Fire & Emergency Services Open House; in appreciation for help with
motor vehicle victim; for support of Cst. Ray Yelle with the YJC Program; a
message from a parent in appreciation for the support received for her son; for
aid supplied through S.Sgt. Weber for assistance with a inmate who required
hospitalization; in appreciation for Cst. Eric Krmpotic representing NBPS at the
Cycling One Meter is the Law media campaign, in appreciation for policing by a
citizen of Callander; of support by Sgt. Hunter on the Summer in the Park
Commitee; and appreciation of the Board for financial support from Crime
Stoppers.
Resolution: #114-2016
Moved by Tiziana Silveri, Seconded by: Allan McDonald
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“Note and file the correspondence received”.

Carried

Note; In addition to the correspondence the Mayor will send a letter of appreciation regarding the
Chief's interaction with a young man at the EMS Official opening.

Contingency Requests:

Our Hospital Walk/Run

Resolution: #115-2016

Moved by: Allan McDonald, Seconded by: William Hagborg

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“donate $250.00 from the Contingency Line of the 2016 Operating Budget toward
the sponsorship for the North Bay Regional Health Centre Foundation Our
Hospital Walk/Run".

Carried
Note; Tiz Silveri, Board member, declared a conflict on this item.

Sirens In the Park

Resolution:; #116-2016

Moved by William Hagborg, Seconded by Tiziana Silveri

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“donate $250.00 from the contingency line in the 2016 Operating Budget toward
the Callander Fire Fighters Association, Sirens in the Park Event”.

Carried

Annual Police Memorial Run

Resolution: #117-2016

Moved by Sheldon Forgette, Seconded by William Hagborg

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“donate $250.00 from the contingency line in the Board’s 2016 Operating Budget
to assist Ms. Major with expenses associated to her participation in this year's
annual Police Memorial Run”.

Carried

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 2



Annual Police Ride to Remember

Resolution: #118-2016

Moved by Tiziana Silveri, Seconded by William Hagborg

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“donate $250.00 from the contingency line in the Board's 2016 Operating Budget
to assist Cst. Steve Brown with expenses associated to his participation in this
year's annual Ride to Remember ",

Carried

Nipissing University Athletics Mens Hockey
Resolution: #119-2016

Moved by Allan McDonald, Seconded by Sheldon Forgette
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“donate $150.00 from the contingency line in the Board's 2016 Operating Budget
to support the Nipissing University Athletics Mens Hockey".
Carried

Taxi Business:
Resolution: #120-2016
Moved by Tiziana Silveri, Seconded by William Hagborg
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“Approve the (3} three taxi license applications for August 2016 as recommended
by the Chief of Police in his letter dated September 1, 2016.”
Carried

Reports:

Chief's Monthly Activity Report

Monthly activities attended by the Chief and / or the Deputy Chief from June 09,
to September 06, 2016 included - Opening remarks for the Ontario Domestic
Violence Coordinators Networking meeting; Grow a Row Initiative at Fire Station
#1; Sunset Public School refereed NBPSA student volleyball game; meeting on
information on medical marijuana; 911 Sub-committee meeting; Vision Zero
Road Safety Webinar, meeting with Amelia Rising and 911 Subcommittee final
meeting at the EMS building; Mac's Crimestoppers “Finnga” Wong mural on
Front Street; Rotary Club planning event for Chase the Ace; NIIGAN Mosewak
Grand Spirit Graduation at Spirit Point Lodge in Powassan; meeting with Near
North District School Board Director; meeting with Janine Lafreniere, Transition
House re. One Pledge

Qut of town functions included: Ontario Association of Chiefs of Police
Conference in Niagara Falls; Canadian Chiefs of Police conference in Ottawa;
and CACP Board meetings and CATA Cyber Crime Advisory Committee
meeting.

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 3



Chief's Personal Expenses

Resolution: #121-2016

Moved by William Hagborg, Seconded by Allan McDonald

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:

“acknowledge receipt of the Chief's personal expenses from June 9, 2016 to
September 7, 2016."

Carried

Statistical Reports
The Deputy-Chief, presented the Condensed Monthly Statistical and Revised
Statistical Reports for the month of July 2016 (Revised); to the Board. He
indicated that at the request of the Board, traffic information will be included in
future reports. There is an overall increase in 2016 in Police Activity and Calls
for Service, although, the month of July saw a decrease of 5% in the number of
calls for service. There were 99 motor vehicle accidents investigated with 16
persons sustaining injuries.
Resolution: #122-2016
Moved by Sheldon Forgette, Seconded by: Tiziana Silveri
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“Accept the Condensed Monthly Statistical and Revised Statistical Reports for
the month of July 2016, as presented”.

Carried

New Business:

Quarterly 2016 Budget Report for the Period of April to June 2016

The Chair shared the results of the Quarterly Budget. He pointed out that there
is an amount of $14,959.00 for a Consultants related to hiring of a Process Re-
engineering Consultant for E-Brief transition. Another item, Misc. Services and
Rents, is currently at $13,310.00 where there was an amount of $6,500.00
assigned. This deficit is associated with the Change of Command in January,
2016. For Service Contracts an amount of $1,526.00 was budgeted. Present
expenses are $2,591.00 which is a reflection on the additional annual contract
with the RCMP in relation to the new use of CLC-Latent Fingerprint Client
access. This report will now be forwarded to City Council as per a previous
Board resolution, and practice.

Board Taxi By-law #20 — Rounding Off Schedule "A” North Bay Police Services
Resolution: #123-2016

Moved by William Hagborg, Seconded by: Allan McDonald

The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves fo:

“approve the rounding off of the fees paid by taxi brokers, owners and drivers
under Schedule “A” of the North Bay Police Services Board Taxi By-law #20 to
reflect the phasing out of the Canadian penny”.

Read the first time

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 4



Resolution: #124-2016
Moved by Tiziana Silveri, Seconded by: Allan McDonald
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“approve the rounding off of the fees paid by taxi brokers, owners and drivers
under Schedule “A” of the North Bay Police Services Board Taxi By-law #20 to
reflect the phasing out of the Canadian penny”.

Read the second time

Resolution: #125-2016
Moved by Sheldon Forgette, Seconded by: Tiziana Silveri
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to:
“approve the rounding off of the fees paid by taxi brokers, owners and drivers
under Schedule “A” of the North Bay Police Services Board Taxi By-law #20 to
reflect the phasing out of the Canadian penny”.

Read the third time and

Carried

Association Update:
There were no representatives available, from the Association, to attend this
meeting. A new executive has been selected for the coming year.

Presentation:

Chair, Dennis O'Connor, presented Sgt. Mike Hunter with the Canadian
Peacekeeping Service Medal for his service in 2011 in Afghanistan. Attached to
the European Union Police Mission (EUPOL) through the RCMP International
Police Peace Operations Program he worked in the Field implementation Office
overseeing EUPOL Provincial Reconstruction Team training and mentoring
Afghanistan National Police.

Adjournment:
Resolution: #126-2016
Moved by William Hagborg, Seconded by Sheldon Forgette
The North Bay Police Services Board hereby resolves to;
“Adjourn the Open Portion of the meeting held on September 14, 2016 at 1040
hours”.
Carried

Closing Remarks by Chair O’'Connor

Prior to leaving the room, the Chair addressed the audience, expressing his and
the Board's frustration in dealing with legislation which prohibits suspension of
salary to Police Officers who have been charged with offenses. This issue is a
frustration for not only the members of the Board but for the general public as
well. He strongly suggested that individual citizens should be addressing their
concerns to the Ministry of Community Safety and Correctional Services,
requesting changes to the Police Act by giving more power to Boards and Chiefs'

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 5



of Police to bring about the desired changes. Without a change to the legislation
neither Chiefs nor Boards have the right to withhold salaries to officers who have
been suspended for a serious crime.

Chair September 14, 2016 Secretary

Minutes of the North Bay Police Services Board meeting held September 14, 2016 &



%Zol\_) mo.y_ UO’_.GN

“Thank | \8
*Vow ,\D:W F:o_

q | dov?t AR

- Macumui Kindanswin Festival -
2010



North Bay Police Service
P.O. Box 717, 135 Princess Street West, North Bay, ON PIB 8J8
Shawn Devine 705-497-5555  FAX 705-497-5591 Scott Tad
Chicf of I'olice Website: www.northbaypolice.on.ca Deputy Chicf of Police

Board Report

Date of Report: October 06, 2016
Date of Meeting: October 12, 2016

Chair Mr. D. O'Connor and members of the
North Bay Police Services Board

Subject: Recognition of Detective Constable D. Wilson
Recommendation: Information Purposes

Find attached, a repoit from Detective Sergeant Webber in relation to the recognition of
Detective Constable Dave Wilson by the RCMP F Division, Major Crime, North
Saskatchewan.

As the memo reports, Detective Constable Wilson's investigation into a local domestic
abuse enabled the RCMP to conduct interviews with the victim, who was a crucial
witness in a homicide investigation in Saskatchewan.

On 26Sep2016, Detective Constable Wilson was presented with a plaque of
appreciation for his efforts and assistance to the Saskatchewan RCMP.
Congratulations, Detective Constable Wilson.

I invite any questions or comments from the Board.

Sincerely,

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police



NORTH BAY POLICE SERVICE

MEMORANDUM

DATE: 26 September 2016
TO: Chief S. Devine
FROM: D/Sgt. D. Webber

SUBJECT: Recognition of D/Cst. D. Wilson by Royal Canadian Mounted Police, F
Division Major Crime — North, Saskatoon

Sir

In December 2015 members from the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, F Division Major
Crime — North, Saskatoon contacted the North Bay Police Service in relation to an on-
going 2014 homicide investigation. According to the RCMP they identified a suspect by the
‘ — P, who was residing in the North Bay area.

D/Cst. David Wilson of the Criminal Investigation Section was assigned as the North Bay
Police Service's Liaison Officer. As members from the RCMP attended North Bay to
continue with their investigation D/Cst. Wilson assisted in arranging interviews, gathering
information

The RCMP also provided D/Cst. Wilson information concerning of a series of domestic

violence occurrences where it was believe had committed a variety of criminal
acts against a key witness to the homicide investigation. As a result, on December 11,
2015, _ ' - + He was held for a bail hearing on charges

of Assault (x2), Assault with a Weapon &3), Choking, Assault Bodily Harm (x3),
Threatening and Point Firearm. D/Cst. Wilson's prompt investigation helped the witness to
the homicide recover from the abuse.

On Jan. 17, 2016 the RCMP Major Crime Unit charged ' Awith second-degree
murder in the death of/ i ' thad been reported missing to
the Calgary Police Service; however the investigation revealed that he had been visiting
Saskatchewan leading up to his death.

By mid-February, faced an additional charge of offering an indignity to human
remains and was accused of putting = body in a refrigerator then burning it.



Page 2 of 2

. =preliminary hearing was to begin in late June; however he had committed
suicide while in custody. At the time of the homicide/ vas known to/ s
both were members of the Outlaws Motoreycle Club.

On September 26, 2016 D/Cst. Wilson was presented with a plaque of appreciation for all
his efforts while assisting in the homicide investigation of - — n Saskatoon in
May 2014. '

Respectfully.

A

D. Webber, D/Sgt.
Criminal Investigation Section



North Bay Police Service
P.O. Box 717, 135 Princess Street West, North Bay, ON PIB 88
SN 705-497-5555  FAX 705-497-5591 Seott Tod
Chief of Police Website: www.northbaypolice.on.ca Deputy Chief of Police

Board Report

Date of Report: October 06, 2016
Date of Meeting: October 12, 2016

Chair Mr. D. O'Conner and members of the
North Bay Police Services Board

Subject: Contingency Account — 90 Years for Laurentian Ski Hill
Fundraiser

Recommendation: That the Board hereby resolves to, “Donate $250.00 from the
contingency line in the 2016 Board’s Budget to support the 90
Years for Laurentian Ski Hill fundraiser.”

Piease find an email from Katharine Strang and Brad Gaven, Co-chairs of a committee
celebrating 90 years for Laurentian Ski Hill.

Laurentian Ski Hill continues to be a focal point for winter activities in the heart of our city
offering healthy and safe activities to local families, as well as being an attraction for
visitors.

I am recommending we provide $250.00 in sponsorship from the contingency line in the
Board’s Operating Budget.

The current balance in the contingency account will support the donation.
I invite any questions or comments from the Board.

Sincerely,

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police



Shawn Devine

From: Katharine Strang ,

Sent: Wednesday, October 05, 2016 12:47 PM

To: Shawn Devine; Scott Tod; '~ —=— ~~r=mdnmmm - ” o
Subject: Laurentian Ski Hill

Attachments: Apres Ski poster-E.pdf

Hi guys,

I am wearing my ‘fundraiser’ hat foday. ©

Brad Gavan and T are co-chairing an event to help celebrate 90 years for Laurentian Ski Hill.

We have had some great community partners join us as sponsors like Tim Hortons, Carte Blanche, Deacon
Wealth Management and Al & Wendy McDonald to name a few.

The hill is so very important to the city and this event will be a fun way to celebrate this.

I have attached some information about the event but here are details:

Friday, October 14, 2016

7:00pm

being held at The Grande Conference Centre

finger foods and food stations

great live music- Stone The Radio is playing for us

4 amazing raffle items (homemade outdoor woeden bar made by Canadore students, $1000 gift card
from Orchards, complete ski package for 4ppl and a family membership, and... trip to New York to see
Billy Joelll)

And the best door prize ever- a free 2 yr lease for a Jeep Wrangler... you pick the colour!

All in support of our local ski hili..
Tickets are $125 per person.

Let me know if I have enticed you to join usl!

Katharine Strang

i)

705-497-7777
Cell: 705-499-7191



$.I 25 Q Location

per ticket | 7PM: The Grande

-------------------------------------------------------------------

LIVE MUSIC 9
Stone The Radio Chalet
Featuring Mykut Abdallah Delicocies

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

% Come ared Cotbbitat ﬁ"é

90 YEARS

AN Wear your APRES SKI APPAREL
a from any decade!

'l.‘
AND YOU ARE ENTERED i R
FOR A CHANCE TO WIN [

Courtesy ot Alor=vs ) DA
g ¥ w
RRY North Bay Chrysier

: Wﬁmsm Brod Gavan Joke Lacourse

_____ 708. 499 ral-al 705.840.3473 705.493.1781
P i .-'_1':"'._ e o ; e

LTI AR N




Paul 1. Cook |
Chief of Police

September 1%, 2016

CHAIR AND MEMBERS
North Bay Police Service Board

North Bay Police Service

P.O. Box 717, 135 Princess Strect West, North Bay, ON PIB RIS
705-497-5555 FAX 705.497-559)

Website: www.northbaypolice.on.ca

Re: Taxi Driver Licence Applications — August 2016

Dear Sir;

Shawn E. Devine
Deputy Chiel of Palice

The following three (3) individuals were issued with a Taxi Licence. It is recommended that this Licence
Application be approved.

No. Name Company
69 Christopher Stewart Union
70 Richard Lefebvre 5-0 Cab
72 Gita Chohan 5-0Cab
Sincerely,

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police

/kp



North Bay Police Service
P.O. Box 717, 135 Princess Street West, North Bay, ON PIB 8J8
Shawn Devine 705-497-3555  FAX 705-497-5591 Scott Tod
Chief of Pelice Website: www.northbaypolice.on.ca Deputy Chief of Police

Board Report

Date of Report: October 5, 2016
Date of Meeting: October 12, 2016

Chair Mr. D. O'Connor and members of the
North Bay Police Services Board

Subject: Chief and Deputy Chief Monthly Activity Report from
155¢p2016 to 050ct2016

Recommendation: Information.

The following are items of interest and special events that Deputy Chief Scott Tod and |
represented the North Bay Police Service at since our last Board meeting that does not
merit separate reporting.

18Sept2016 - | attended the 76™ Anniversary of the Battle of Britain.

195ept2016 — Deputy Tod participated in CACP Cyber Committee Conference call.
20-21Sept2016 - | Attended the Small Mid-Size Police Services meeting in Barrie.
21Sept2016 — | Attended the OACP Executive days Trade Show in Vaughan Ontario.
22Sept2016 — | Attended the OACP Executive Days Conference.

235ept2016 — Deputy Tod attended One Kid's Place for CYAC teleconference.

24Sept2016 — Run to Remember Fallen Police & Peace Officers final leg run Ottawa.

25Sept2016 — Canadian Remembrance service for Fallen Police & Peace Officers on
Parliament Hill Ottawa



Page 2 of 2
Date of Report October 5, 2016
Date of Meeting:  October 12, 2016

Subject: Chief and Deputy Chief Monthly Activity Report from
09Jun2016 to 06Sep2016

275ept2016 - | attended the Downtown Waterfront Masterplan presentation.
28-298ept2016 - We both attended the Zone 1A OACP meeting in West Nipissing.

295ept2016 — We both attended the Walk a Mile in Her Shoes event at Nipissing
University.

30Sept2016 — | attended Odyssey School Student presentation.

30Sept2016 — Deputy Tod attended the retirement of RCMP Dep. Commissioner Mike
Cabana in Ottawa.

010ct2016 — Attended One Pledge presentation.
010ct2016 - Attended Nipissing University Clean up day in Thibeault Terrace.

050ct2016 — Chief and Deputy met with S/Sgt. Al Boulianne of the Canadian Anti-Fraud
Centre.

| invite any comments or questions from the Board.
Sincerely,

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police



North Bay Police Service
P.O. Box 717, 135 Princess Street West, North Bay, ON P1B 8J8
Y 705-497-5555  FAX 705-497-5591 b
Chicf of Police Website: www.northbaypolice.on.ca Deputy Chief of Police

Board Report

Date of Report: October 05, 2016
Date of Meeting: October 12, 2016

Chair Mr. D. O'Connor and members of the
North Bay Police Services Board

Subject: Personal Expenses

Recommendation: That the Board hereby resolves to, “Acknowledge receipt of the
Chief’'s personal expenses from September 7 -12, 2016."”

Board By-law #05/01 directs the Chief of Police to submit personal expenses to the Board on a
quarterly basis. The expenses reported on should include credit card invoices and per diem
expenses. Enclosed are Visa statements cutlining my expenses for the dates stated. The table
below breaks out these expenditures.

Date Comments Accommodation | Per Diem Mileage
Sept. 15/16, | Order of Merit Presentation —
2016 Ottawa $289.53 $74.00 | $323.10
Sept. 20/21, | Small/Mid Sized Police
2016 Services meeting — Barrie $158.19 $53.00 | 5%112.50
Sept. 21/22,
2016 OACP Trade Show and CEO $160.46 $44.00 | $28.35

Meeting — Vaughan

Sept. 24/25,
2016 Ottawa Police Memorial $227.84 $65.00 | $366.75

| invite any questions or comments from the Board.

Sincerely,

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police



2016-10-03

"REVISED

NORTH BAY POLICE SERVICE

CONDENSED MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

MONTH OF AUGUST

During the month of August 2016, police activity for the North Bay Police Service
resulted in 2662 calls as compared to 2656 calls in 2015.

Of these calls, 87 were to investigate motor vehicle accidents. Twelve of these
accidents involved injuries, with 14 persons injured.

The following is a list of some of the criminal occurrences investigated during the month,

with comparative figures for 2015.

Year to Date

Cleared to Date

‘—,= 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Homicide - . . . - -
Sexual Offences 5 19 40 63 30 41
Assault 24 31 251 301 232 260
||Robbery 3 1 14 15 7 7
Break, Enter & Theft 17 18 96 121 15 26
Stolen Vehicles 1 3 17 23 4 3
Stolen Bicycles 14 7 63 73 3

Recovered Bicycles 11 8 44 38 2 4
Theft Under 86 95 563 586 105 176
Theft Over 1 1 3 12 1 2
Mischief 31 49 207 328 53 98
Drug Charges 15 17 94 130 L 131
Criminal Offences Total 1930 2225

Calis for Service 17613 16603"

Police Activity 20236 19351 "

Additional detailed statistics are available through the Office of the Chief of Police.
*Note - Year to Date statistics will change due to adjustments.

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police




2016-09-01

During the month of August 2016, police activity for the North Bay Police Service

NORTH BAY POLICE SERVICE
CONDENSED MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

MONTH OF AUGUST

resulted in 2663 calls as compared to 2656 calls in 2015.

Of these calls, 87 were to investigate motor vehicle accidents. Twelve of these

accidents involved injuries, with 14 persons injured.

The following is a list of some of the criminal occurrences investigated during the month,
with comparative figures for 2015.

_ o Year to Date Cleared to Date
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Homicide - - - - - -
Sexual Offences 3 19 38 63 29 41
Assault 19 31 246 301 227 260
IRobbery 1 1 8 15 5 7
Break, Enter & Theft 12 18 90 121 14 26
Stolen Vehicles 1 3 17 23 4 3
Stolen Bicycles 14 7 63 73 3 1
Recovered Bicycles 11 8 44 38 2 4
Theft Under 48 95 524 586 105 176
Theft Over - 1 2 12 1 2
Mischief 21 49 197 328 53 98
[Orug Charges 9 17 87 130 101 131
"Criminal Offences Total 1826 2225 o
||Calls for Service 16603
Police Activity 19351

Additional detailed statistics are available through the Office of the Chief of Police.

*Note - Year to Date statistics will change due to adjustments.

Shawn Devine
Chief of Police



































































THE MOBILE CRISIS TEAM
North Bay Regional Centre régional
Health Centre de santé de North Bay
Background

In 2014, with a need to respond to the growing
number of mental health calls for service in a more
effective, efficient and compassionate way, the
NBPS partnered with the North Bay Regional
Health Centre (NBRHC) to create the community-
based Mobile Crisis Team (MCT).

The MCT, which consists of one police officer and
one registered nurse experienced in mental health
and addictions, responds to individuals and
families experiencing a behavioural health crisis.
The goal is to reduce the immediate risk of danger
to the individual(s} in crisis and/or others.

How it works

After police complete an initial assessment of a
situation involving an emotionally-disturbed
person and devise a safety plan, the MCT will
either plan a follow-up visit with the individual
{and family, if applicable} or solicit the assistance
of other community services. In some instances, it
may be necessary for patrol officers or the MCT
police officer to apprehend an individual and bring
him/her to the NBRHC's Emergency Department
(ED) for further assessment. When not
operational, the MCT will also follow-up on all
mental health occurrences that took place during
their absence.

2015 Results

Total mental health calls for service 2125
Average mental health calls per day 6
Calls involving MCT 813
Individuals brought to ED by MCT 37

Individuals brought to ED by police & MCT 36

Of note
85% of mental health and addictions crisis calls for
service occur between 8 p.m. and midnight.

Fridays were the busiest day of the week; and May,
August and October were the busiest months of
the year.

Emergency Department Admission Rates
Individuals assisted by the MCT at the Emergency
Department resulted in an 80% admission rate,
whether on a Form 1, withdrawal management
bed or inpatient unit bed.

Individuals who were not brought to hospital were
met with and assisted through initiating services in
the community in order to properly manage their
individual circumstance.

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

In November 2013, in response to
the high number of domestic-
related calis for service the NBPS
k receives, Chief of Police Paul Cook,

PLEDGE Citv of North Bay Mayor Al

e domestic violece= McDonald and Ms.  Janine
Lafreniere of Nipissing Transition House joined
forces to launch the OnePledge.ca campaign.

One Pledge is @ community campaign aimed at
encouraging local residents to make a difference.
By signing the pledge, either in person or online,
participants take a pledge to support safe healthy
relationships at home, at work and in the
community, to treat others with dignity and
respect, to teach children the value of a healthy
relationship, to never condone or commit acts of
domestic violence, to never blame victims of
domestic vialence and to report domestic violence
to the police. To date over 5,000 people have
signed the pledge.

2015 Results

Total domestic-related calls for service 1256
Average domestic-related calls per day 3to4d
Total people charged 272



THE GATEWAY HUB

Background
In 2012, sparked by a large
number of Fentanyl-overdose
deaths in North Bay, as well
as a rise in domestic and
Aryow mental health calls for
service, Chief of Police Paul Cook partnered with
Dr. Jim Chirico, Medical Officer of Health, North
Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit to bring
community leaders together to explore an
innovative way of addressing these issues.

\TY
ontr 4y

aATwat

‘?\“

o)

O

7,
LO

-

Prince Albert Model

As a result of the early discussions and research,
and based on the Prince Albert, Saskatchewan’s
Community Mobilization model, North Bay’s
Gateway Hub (the “Hub”) was launched in
December 2013.

North Bay is a provincial leader

North Bay's leadership in establishing the Hub, the
first of its kind in Ontario, has proven to be
instrumental in the introduction of similar
situation tables in other jurisdictions in Ontario
and Manitoba, after human service providers from
these communities visited North Bay to see how it
works. (To date, there have been 14 site visits.)

Description

The Hub is a forum for a highly-structured
collaboration between human service providers,
including police services, health and social sector
representatives, government institutions, First
Nations, and other community-based
organizations. Members of the Hub meet twice per
week.

The intent of the Hub is to mobilize existing
resources to help those in need rapidly reduce
acutely-elevated risk.

Acutely-elevated risk exists when a number of
factors are identified that, if left unattended,
would likely result in harm or lead to a situation

12

worsening to a point where a more formal and
extended intervention is required. This may
include the apprehension of children, criminal
charges, or prolonged medical or psychiatric
inpatient hospital stays.

L "N L e
Before any situation is discussed at a roundtable
Hub meeting, it must first be determined that the
situation involves risk factors that extend beyond
the scope or normal business practices of any one

agency.

In most Hub discussions, three or more agencies
must be involved to address the extent of the risk
factors present.

How acutely-elevated risk is assessed

The Hub has a defined process for determining if
an individual and/or a family is/are at acutely-
elevated risk and if a multi-agency intervention is
required. The process is designed to balance an
individual's right to privacy with the value or
necessity of addressing the elevated risk.

Risk categories that could contribute to situations
of acutely-elevated risk include: mental health
issues, parenting issues, crime, drug abuse,
negative peers, physical violence, alcohol abuse,
truancy, victims of crime, housing issues, suicide,
poverty, self-harm, physical health issues,
runaways, antisocial/negative behaviour, basic
needs issues, sexual violence, social environment
issues and unemployment.

Results to date

Since its launch in December 2013, the Hub, which
consists of representatives from 17 local
organizations, held 212 round table meetings to
discuss acutely-elevated risk situations. 53.5% of
these situations involved persons between 12 and
18 years of age. A total of 390 discussions have
taken place (190 in 2015 alone) and services
offered and connected to 536 individuals.



COURT SECTION

The North Bay Police Service’s Court Section provides court security, a subpoena summaons service and
prisoner transportation. In 2015, the Court Section saw a reduction in criminal charges by 32.6% and a
reduction in prisoner transport by 19% compared to the previous year. In September 2015, the

expansion of video remand reduced prisoner transport.

USE OF FORCE

In August 2013, the Ministry of Community
Safety and Correctional Services expanded
the restricted use of conducted energy
weapons (CEWSs) to include frontline police
officers. Ontario first authorized these
weapons for all police services in 2002,
though their use at the time was limited to
frontline supervisors, tactical units, and
perimeter contrel and containment teams.

13

2013 2014 2015
Weekends and Statutory Holidays {(W.A.5.H.) Court 153 193 169
Video Remand 711 925 831
Prisoners escorted within City of North Bay 3,438 3,431 2,787
Prisoners escorted from out of the city 123 60 49
Prisoner meals 2,479 2,375 1,838
Bocuments served 868 940 688
Adult charges (Criminal Code) 3,547 3,958 2,672
Youth charges {Criminal Code) 353 273 179
Total charges 3,900 4,231 2,851

Use of CEWs

Trained police officers use a CEW to control
individuals who pose a threat to the public,
to officers, or to themselves. CEWs have
proven to result in fewer significant injuries
to subjects and officers than other use-of-
force options.

New Taser X2 purchased

In 2015, the NBPS purchased 20 of the most
advanced CEWSs, the Taser X2, and provided
Ministry-mandated training for police officers of
all ranks. All NBPS patrol officers are now
equipped with a Taser X2 while on duty.



Public Opinion of
North Bay Police Se

F/;\Q

Safety

95% 84% opproval roling
are satisfled or very on pollteness ond
satisfied with thelr opproachablity

sense of persongl

salety in North Bay 90% approval rating

on commiiment to
community

"%“.*. o{'o

Cruisers and bicycle patrols

63% 78%

want more want more blcycle

cruisers on pairol patrol officers
81%

want foot patrol
officers downtown

I

Road Safety
Concerns

impaired driving at 81% 64% said
rates as the public's highest
road safety concem,
followed by aggressive
driving ol 71%

and poor driving in school
safety zones at 69%

Quadlity of Service

73% cpprovai rafing
on honesty and falmess

82% opproval rating
on dedication to
service

Police budget

1o on increase in police bud&
hire more officers, increase
or maintain curent level of service

Crime Issues

49% rale drugs
and drug-related
crimes as a lop crime
issue for North Bay

et to
Ibiity

This Oraclepol Research public opinion survey was conducted from 17-22 Juna 2015,

The margin of error Is +/-4.9%, 19/20 times.

14

residents

PUBLIC COMPLAINTS

Police conduct complaints

In 2015, there were 17 public complaints against police
conduct sent to the Office of the independent Police
Review Director (OIPRD}, compared to seven complaints
sent to the OIPRD in 2014 and nine sent In 2013, The
Chief of Police initiated 11 police conduct complaints in
2015, compared to 13 in 2014 and 17 In 2013.

Palicy complaints

There was one complaint against a North Bay
Police Services Board policy, compared to no policy
complaints in 2013 or 2014.



Public Opinion of
North Bay Police Service 2

A\ g ‘%M&ma
- ' . | .

residents

Safety Quality of Service

97% 91% approvalrating  799% approval rating
are satisfied or very on politeness and on honesty and falmess
sc:tlsfiedf with thel[ approachability
sense ol persona approval ratin
safefyinNorhBay 7% Opprovalrating 3% 0PTEAliaiing
on commitment to TR
community

o= ol 55

Cruisers and other patrols Crime Issues

67% 47% 31% rote drugs
want more wani more blcycle and drug-relafed
cruisers on patrol patrol officers crimes as a top crime
49% Issue for Callander
want more
snowmobile patrols

Road Safety

Concemns Police budget

Impaired driving at 62% 68% soid yes

rates as the public's highest to anincrease in police budget to
road safety concem, hire more officers, Increase visibllity
followed by poor driving In or maintain cumrent level of service

school safety zones at 39%

This Oraclepoll Research public opinlon survey was conducted from 18-22 June 2015.
The margin of error Is +/-5%, 19/20 times.

15



ACTUAL COST OF POLICING

Operations
(51,768,055}

Salary and Benefits
(517,232,413}

2015 Budget
The North Bay Police Services Board's approved 2015 Net Budget was $17,023,838.

Actual Cost of Policing in 2015
The actual cost of policing in 2015 was $17,232,413 (91%) for salary and benefits plus $1,768,055 (9%) for
operations, for a total of $19,000,468 in expenditures.

In 2015, the NBPS collected a total of 51,945,972 in revenues, bringing the actual cost of policing to
$17,054,496.

Capital Costs in 2015
In 2015, capital costs came to a total of $466,190.

North Bay Police Service North Bay Police Services Board
135 Princess Street West, North Bay, Ontario Mr. D. O’Connor, Board Chair
northbaypolice.ca Mr. B. Hagborg, Vice Chair
Twitter @northbaypolice Ms. T. Silveri

Mayor A. McDonald, City of North Bay
Chief of Police Paul Cook Deputy Mayor 5. Forgette, City of North Bay
{Retired on January 22", 2016.)
Deputy Chief of Police Shawn Devine Cover photo credit:
{Promoted to Chief of Police on January 22, 2016) Jeff Cross, Prestige Photo, St. Catharines, Ontario.

16



North Bay Police Service

135 Princess Street West, North Bay, Ontario
northbaypolice.ca

Twitter @northbaypolice




